
 PRESCOTT: THE ARIZONA CENTENNIAL  
 CITY COMMITTEE 
 MEETING OF MONDAY, NOVEMBER 16, 2009 
 PRESCOTT, ARIZONA 
 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE PRESCOTT: THE ARIZONA CENTENNIAL 
CITY COMMITTEE, HELD ON MONDAY, NOVEMBER 16, 2009 IN THE PRESCOTT 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS AT PRESCOTT CITY HALL, 201 SOUTH CORTEZ, 
PRESCOTT ARIZONA 
 
       
 I.  Call to Order  
 
 Chairman Gilliss called the meeting to order at 1:04 p.m. 
 
 MEMBERS PRESENT: Chairman Gilliss; Nancy Burgess; Deborah Thurston; 

Elisabeth Ruffner, Karen Churchill; Dave Maurer. 
 
 MEMBERS ABSENT: Councilwoman Lopas; Lindsey Mills; Patti Ezell. 
 
 ADVISORS PRESENT:  Bill Thompson (Embry-Riddle Aeronautical University). 
 
 STAFF PRESENT: Liz Burke; Becky Garvin.  
 
II.   Approval of Minutes of October 23, 2009 meeting. 
 
 Approved as circulated 
 
III.  Committee Memberships: 
 
 Chairman Gilliss said that there are 13 months left before the Centennial is here 

and they need to start engaging the community people. 
 
    A.   Yavapai College Advisory Member (Att. III-A) 

   
 Chairman Gilliss said that Dean Garvey would find someone from Yavapai 

College to take his place. She said they need to discuss what this person 
would do. Also she said that the College has a program called Senior 
Connections that put together volunteers over the age of 55 with 
community needs. She said that there is one program where AARP would 
fund someone 18 hours a week. She added that the college will be a 
source for volunteers, although they would not be the only source. 

   
Ruffner suggested that when they talk with the College that they find out 
what plans they have for celebrating the centennial. Chairman Gilliss said 
that she would be setting up as many classes that have content that falls 
into the Centennial, and will use the Centennial logo to designate them. 



Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee 
Meeting of November 16, 2009  Page 2 
 
 

Additionally, the year of the Centennial would also be the 20th Anniversary 
of the Performance Hall so they are looking into what type of large event 
they may have. 

 
    B.   Non-Voting Status of Advisory Members 
  
 Chairman Gilliss said that last month this item was on the agenda 

because one of the members had requested consideration be given to 
having the colleges/universities be voting members. She said that since 
none of them were there, they did not discuss it. She asked Bill 
Thompson, representing Embry-Riddle Aeronautical University, his 
thoughts. He suggested that they give the three entities one vote. After 
brief discussion it was agreed that this item would be tabled until all 
representatives were present. 

 
    C.   Nominations for open position due to Shaffer resignation 
 
 Chairman Gilliss introduced Mitchell Fetty, who she said she had known 

for a long time. Mr. Fetty said that he was a native Arizonan and would be 
happy to serve. Chairman Gilliss said that if everyone was agreeable with 
his appointment they would take it to Council for formal action. Everyone 
agreed to his appointment. 

  
 IV Standing Sub-Committee Reports/Updates: 
  
     A.   Community Outreach (Gilliss) 
 
  1.   Presentations: Sandy Moss, 11/9 
   Prescott Chamber Ambassadors, 11/9 
      Suggestions for additional venues  
       
 Chairman Gilliss reported that she had already done the Moss 

show. It was also suggested that they contact Up to the Minute with 
Marni (already scheduled), the various service organizations in the 
community, the Arts and Humanities Council, the Prescott Fine Arts 
Association Production Committee. Chairman Gilliss said that they 
plan to e-mail information to the service organizations. 

       
 Ruffner suggested that they include the benefits to an organization 

for being on the City’s website, to help the public know about their 
group and its purpose. 

 
  2.   E-mails to community organizations (Sanders) 

3.  Chamber of Commerce Donor Letters and Newsletter article 
(Maurer) (Att. IV-A-3) 



Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee 
Meeting of November 16, 2009  Page 3 
 
 
 Chairman Gilliss said that the letters requesting donations had 

gone out, but to date they have received no contributions. Maurer 
noted that the letter went to the oldest businesses so far. He said 
that the letter itself would not raise the money. Gilliss requested 
that Confer send her the list of who the letter went to. 

 
     B.   Legacy Projects/Special Events (Burgess, Gilliss) (Att. IV-B) 

   
1.   Special Event Projects & Application - AHAC (see 

www.arizona100.org) 
       
 Chairman Gilliss said that the State came out with the second level 

of project application. She said that the City’s subcommittee would 
help determine if they were Legacy Project and then those would 
be sent to the Arizona Historical Advisory Commission. 

 
  2.   Response Process (Att. IV-B-2) 

      
Chairman Gilliss recommended that they have a communication 
process lined out as applications come in. They would study and 
analyze them to see if there are any glitches or things to be 
explained better. Once they came in they would determine which 
committee it would go to.    

   
 Chairman Gilliss said that Maddie has been sending out e-mails. 

She could do the screening, or have the paid AARP support person 
involved. 

   
 Burgess voiced concerns about the process. She said that they met 

and discussed what they were going to do with the information they 
get back. She said that they hope to have a member from the 
Ambassadors assigned to each local project/celebration. Then the 
information would be included on the City’s website and also 
forwarded to the County. 

   
 Ruffner asked whose database would contain all of the information. 

Gilliss said that was a good question; they were thinking of keeping 
it tied with the e-mail addresses and Maddie has set that up. 

 
  3.   City Legacy Project Presentations/Recommendations: 
   – Article/Book/CD project (Gilliss) (Att. IV-B-3) 
   – Other 
 
 
 

http://www.arizona100.org)/


Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee 
Meeting of November 16, 2009  Page 4 
 
 
     C.   Local Projects (Mills/Gilliss) 
 
 Chairman Gilliss said that the Committee has not yet met, but they need to 

get the group together. She said that Mills had agreed to chair the 
committee, but she could not be at the meeting today, or the one 
scheduled for next month. She asked if anyone could think of someone 
that could assist Mills. Thurston said that she offered to be a worker bee, 
but she is already in charge of the marketing committee.  

 
  1.  Schedule first meeting 
  2 Chamber Ambassadors 
 
     D.  Media/Promotions (Thurston) 
    

Thurston reported that the subcommittee had selected a logo designed by 
Mark Seaman. She said that he would be out of town tomorrow, but his 
wife would be accepting at the Meeting along with Mark’s partner with 3DI.  
Gilliss said that Burgess has also prepared a certificate to be presented to 
them along with an award being taken care of by Garvin. Gilliss said that 
there were about ten entries submitted. 

 
  1.   Logo Selection/Award (Att. IV-D-1) 
  2.   Meeting Scheduled for 11/18; Agenda 
  3.   Web Site (Gilliss) 
 
V.   Ad Hoc Committee Reports/Updates 
    
 Thurston reported that the first meeting of the Media/Promotions Subcommittee 

is scheduled for Wednesday, November 18. She said that they were leaving the 
door open for additional people to join that committee and they should contact 
her if they were interested. 

 
 Gilliss said that their agenda was two-part; 1) look at all of the media people to 

engage; and 2) create a timeline for getting some projects done and assigning 
specific tasks. 

 
 Burgess reported that Cat Moody would have the website done by the end of the 

week, noting that it was basic at this time but they will add information as it 
becomes available. 

 
 1.   Committee Descriptions/Approvals? 
 
 Gilliss asked if everyone was satisfied with the descriptions of the 

subcommittees. Everyone agreed.  
 



Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee 
Meeting of November 16, 2009  Page 5 
 
 

A.  Logo (Att. V-1-A) 
  B.  Stamp (Att. V-1-B) 
  C.  Viewerie (Att. V-1-C) 
  D.  Merchandising? 
 
 Chairman Gilliss said that she still needed to write one of the 

Merchandising Subcommittee. She said that Guy Roginson was very 
interested in that topic and would chair that committee. 

 
E. Kick-Off Event? 

 
Gilliss said that they need to begin thinking about that.  Ruffner said 
that the City owns the property and does all of the productions, but 
the Foundation has the event committee and she would ask them 
to begin discussing this. 
 
Discussion was held on when the best date would be to hold the 
event, in conjunction with the anniversary of the Elks.  

 
  F.  Culminating Event (Mills) 
       

Gilliss said that Mills had e-mailed her awhile back with the idea of 
holding a parade, street dance downtown. She said that she needs 
to talk with her and see if she has been able to find someone to 
oversee that event. 
 

Gilliss reported that Cat Moody had put together a preliminary PowerPoint 
presentation from the data she had available at that time, but she has not 
had time to pursue it. She asked if everyone still thought a PowerPoint 
presentation was good to have. Burgess responded that it would be 
valuable when they cannot meet directly with a group. She said that it has 
to be short and it is good to have consistent information going to 
everyone. 
 
Ruffner reported that she was writing up her PowerPoint 
(Yavapai…Mother of Counties) as a Legacy Project and sanctioned event. 
She said that she is tailoring it so that anyone could use it at any time, and 
it would be available in a library of resources to be created. 

 
2. Stamp Project (Att. V-2) 

 
Chairman Gilliss said that she had given information to the committee to 
discuss the three different kinds of projects they were looking at, but today 
they need to decide and move forward. 
 



Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee 
Meeting of November 16, 2009  Page 6 
 
 
  – Design Unveiling - Churchard information 

 
Discussion was first held on the possibility of having the unveiling of the 
stamp held in Prescott, possibly in September of 2011. Gilliss said that 
Churchard had indicated that the State would be holding three signature 
events, one each of the cities that were capitals of the State (Phoenix, 
Prescott and Tucson). As they chatted with Churchard, they planted the 
seed that the unveiling in September in Prescott would be good. 

 
 Everyone agreed that they would like to see this project move forward. 

Sente said that they all need to understand that the US Postal Service 
was the 800 pound gorilla and if they decide at the last minute that they 
want to do the unveiling somewhere else, the City would need to be ready 
to move with something else. 

 
 Discussion was then held on the First Day Issue Event, and getting the 

students involved. Sente said that they are still waiting to find out if it 
would be a school wide project, or just Fourth Grade students. He said 
that the idea was to have each student design their own first day art work 
on an envelope that would then be postmarked.  

    
 Churchill said that she wondered if there was a way to take it even further, 

possibly displaying the winning entries in the Viewerie at the Library. 
Gilliss said that is why they would want to get the media committee 
involved. 

 
 Burgess noted that she had friends that work for a local printing company 

and they may have left over envelopes of odd sizes.  
 
 Sente said that he had not approached anyone about volunteering yet, but 

now that they have decide what direction they were headed in, he would 
start asking for volunteers. 

 
 Chairman Gilliss said that John Langellier (who also serves as a member of the 

Arizona Historical Advisory Council) had indicated to her that there is money 
available from the State for projects, but it was going fast. He was encouraging 
them to decide on a project and get an application to them quickly. 

 
 Gilliss said that they had previously talked about publishing articles in the 

newspaper once a week for a year, and then have them published in a book 
through the assistance of the Sharlot Hall Museum. She said that Langellier had 
voiced some concern on the part of Churchill’s limited time. She said that they 
could consider this project as a Legacy Project, and Langellier was suggesting 
that they submit it first to the AHAC and then go to the City, if it was something 



Prescott: The Arizona Centennial City Committee 
Meeting of November 16, 2009  Page 7 
 
 

they wanted to move forward on. She said that the idea was to have any profits 
from the sale of the book go back to the Museum. 

    
 Ruffner said that KUAT was already doing a series of Arizona stories, and 

perhaps they should consider pursuing a partnership with them. Maurer said that 
it sounds like the KUAT project was statewide, while this would be Prescott 
specific. 

 
 Churchill said that the education department at Sharlot Hall Museum was looking 

to have a public access television show, and perhaps once a quarter they could 
take a story from the collections and tie it into the show. Thurston said she like 
that idea. 

 
 Churchill voiced concern with titling them “stories;” she preferred a different 

term.Burgess said that they need to make a commitment to it or not, today. They 
need to have everything together for the Legacy Project. 

 
 Gilliss said that she gave birth to the concept and now it was up for adoption. If it 

goes as a Legacy Project, it would go to the subcommittee. Burgess said that 
they could work on budget numbers. All agreed to go forward with this project. 
Maurer suggested that the wording that was circulated be made a little stronger 
in the application, changing “mights” to “wills.” 

 
VI.   Adjournment 
 
 Discussion was held on when to hold the next meeting. With the holidays all 

agreed to hold it on Monday, December 14, 2009. 
 
 There being no further business to be brought before the Committee, the 

Prescott: the Arizona Centennial City Committee adjourned at 2:53 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
      ___________________________________  
      Dr. Barbara Gilliss, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Lindsey Mills, Secretary 


